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Letterbox Contact
We hope this information will answer any questions you may 
have about the Adoption Letterbox Exchange. Your Letterbox 
arrangement may last for many years so we suggest you keep  
the booklet as a guide to help you. 

What is the Letterbox?
The Letterbox is an arrangement through which birth relatives  
and adoptive parents can exchange information after adoption. 
It usually happens once a year at a time agreed between those  
involved and with confidentiality assured.

Why have a Letterbox scheme?
There can be benefits for everyone involved in a Letterbox arrangement:

Adopted children: Although adopted children have become 
part of another family they may want news of their birth family.  
It is important for them to know that their birth family still thinks  
about them and interested in their progress.

The aim is to help children feel both accepted in their adoptive  
family and comfortable about their origins and identity. If in years  
to come adopted young people are thinking about meeting with  
birth relatives, having had news of them over the years will make  
them more confident about what to expect.
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Who can use the Letterbox?
The Letterbox service agreements are generally between birth 
relatives and adoptive parents. Adopted children may sometimes  
write to birth relatives themselves with agreement from their  
adoptive parents, but the expectation is that it is the adults who  
will be exchanging news.

The adoptive parents will make the decision about what is passed  
on to the child and how and when this is shared. Some children, 
especially as they grow older, will have their own ideas about the 
Letterbox arrangement and sometimes changes may be made if  
it seems the right thing for everyone involved.

A Letterbox arrangement of some kind is made for most children who 
are adopted and all adoptive parents are encouraged to take part. In 
birth families, birth parents and birth grandparents are the people who 
use the Letterbox service most, but other relatives and significant people 
from the child’s past may be involved in a Letterbox arrangement.

Brothers and sisters who have been adopted by separate families 
may have a Letterbox arrangement set up between the adoptive 
families if this is something everyone wants.

Sometimes, information may be sent from adopters to birth family 
only or either side may want to send news but not receive themselves. 
It is possible to have an arrangement in one direction if one party 
does not want to take an active part in the exchange of news. If this 
applies to you or you are feeling anxious about entering into a Letterbox 
arrangement, you can discuss your feelings with your Post Permanency 
Social Worker who is there to support you.

Birth relatives: Birth relatives often have a strong need to know 
that the child is well and appreciate news of the child’s progress  
and wellbeing.

Although this news sometimes brings back painful memories,  
many birth parents and relatives feel they would rather stay in touch. 
Over time, it may help to build up a realistic picture of the child’s  
developing personality and skills, as she/he grows up.

Adoptive parents: Adoptive parents often find the news they receive 
through the Letterbox service helps to answer the child’s questions over 
the years. It gives them a picture of birth relatives’ continuing lives and 
provides the opportunity for the families to stay in touch. It may support 
the discussions about adoption you have with your child.

The agreed information is sent through the Hackney Letterbox  
service to be shared with the child in a way and at a time you  
decide is right. Experience has shown that it is most helpful to the  
child if the information is part of the child’s understanding about 
adoption early on.

Much of the news exchanged through the Letterbox is positive and 
reassuring, but there may be times when difficult or painful information 
is received, or when urgent news needs to be passed on. In these 
situations, you can contact your Post Permanency Social Worker at  
any time for support to you and your family.

Many adoptive parents and birth relatives have told us that 
preparing and receiving regular news and photographs  
through the Letterbox service arouses deep and sometimes  
painful feelings.

These feelings are natural and normal. If you feel overwhelmed  
and would like some support to help you come to terms with your 
emotions, please tell us so that we can support you. 
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What can I send through the  
Letterbox Service?
In all Letterbox agreements, the adoptive parents are encouraged  
to send general news of the child each year at a time agreed by 
both parties. Sending a photograph of the child may be something 
you agreed to. Birth relatives may want to send photographs and 
information about themselves and their families. CD’s are sometimes  
a practical and creative way of sharing information. 

It is not possible to accept presents, vouchers or money for  
practical reasons and because of the risk of things getting lost.  
We realise some people will be disappointed by this and hope  
you will understand.

In some circumstances, with agreement, it may be possible to set  
up a Standing Order with a bank or Post Office. This enables an  
adoptive parent to buy a present on behalf of the birth relative. 

How is a letterbox arrangement set up?
The letterbox service is managed by a Post Permanency Social Worker, 
based in the Post Permanency Unit. Before a child is adopted, there will 
have been a good deal of discussion with both parties and their social 
workers about what kind of contact there might be between the two 
families after adoption.

If it is agreed that a Letterbox arrangement is appropriate, before the 
adoption order is made, adoptive parents and birth relatives will each  
be asked by their social workers to complete a Letterbox form. This sets 
out what they hope to receive through the Letterbox, and what they  
are prepared to provide and when.
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Your social worker will help you with this and together you should be 
able to work out what is practical and possible.

It is very important that you agree to an arrangement that you will 
be able to manage over the years ahead. A Letterbox agreement 
is a serious commitment and a long-term undertaking. A simpler 
arrangement may be easier to keep to.

Many people send information once a year. For some the month of 
the child’s birthday is the one they choose, but others prefer to avoid 
this month there are no rules about this. If you are sending news and 
greetings for a child’s birthday, you need to allow at least two weeks  
for the Letterbox to send it on in time.

We prefer you not to choose December if possible because the 
Letterbox service can become very overloaded at Christmas, causing lots 
of delays. You can enclose Christmas greetings with news sent at other 
times of year and they can be kept for Christmas time. If December is 
your month, you really need to send your letter in November to be on 
the safe side and to make sure that we can send it out in good time.

It is often useful to address questions about the child’s well  
being directly so for this reason we suggest that your letter comes  
in the month before the adopter’s letter so that they can respond  
to your questions.

When the Letterbox agreement forms are complete, they are sent to 
the letterbox coordinator. The needs of the child and the wishes of 
all concerned are then carefully considered and an agreement that 
everyone signs up to is reached. Although we try very hard, it is not 
always possible to meet everyone’s requests. 

When can the Letterbox arrangement start?
Any exchange of news before an adoption order is made will be 
handled by the social workers involved. This is a separate arrangement 
that ceases when the adoption order is made. It is only after the  
order has been made by the court that the Letterbox arrangement 
can be formally set up.

The post permanency social worker sends a Letterbox agreement 
letter to the birth relatives and the adoptive parents confirming what 
has been agreed and setting out exactly what everyone needs to do 
in the future. She/he also sends each person a copy of the form they 
completed, as a reminder of what they have agreed to. It is a good  
idea to keep the letter and the form safe to remind you of  
what arrangements have been agreed.

How does the letterbox service work?
Send all information (news, photos etc) for a Letterbox arrangement 
directly to the post permanency social worker at the address given in 
this booklet. Please include a cover note with the child’s birth name and  
your full name so the right connections can be made. You will be sent an 
acknowledgement when your news arrives at the Letterbox.

Everything sent to us will be looked at by the post permanency social 
worker. It is easier if envelopes are left unsealed as the worker will need 
to make a copy of the contents of the envelope for our records. 

We send all letters we receive by recorded delivery to limit the possibility 
of things going astray. If information sent is distressing or of a sensitive 
nature or difficult for the person for whom it is intended, the post 
permanency social worker will make contact before it is sent on.



98

Occasionally the worker might contact the writer of news to ask that 
something be written in a different way. If you are ever concerned 
about what you have received through the Letterbox service, or if you 
are not sure how to pass on some difficult news, do get in touch with us.

All information we receive is treated with sensitivity and Confidentially. 
Your news will only be read by post permanency social workers. If you 
accidentally include information in your news that has not been agreed 
beforehand (such as an address), this will normally be taken out before 
the letter is sent on.

If you change your address, please be sure to let us know. If you don’t 
do this, it won’t be possible to send on or pass on any letters which  
may arrive for you.

What sort of things should I write?
Many people find it quite hard to write their letters for a Letterbox 
arrangement and especially with the first one. We have prepared a 
guide to give you some ideas about what you can write in your news  
to get you started. Please ask your social worker to provide one for 
you, or contact the post permanency social worker and ask for one to 
be sent. If you would like more help, ask your social worker or the post 
permanency social worker, who will be pleased to help you.



What if I don’t keep to the agreement?
We realise that it is easy to forget to send in your news to the Letterbox 
service as arranged, but please try your best to send it in the month 
agreed. We know that children, adoptive parents and birth relatives 
often feel very disappointed and let down if the news they are expecting 
is late or does not arrive at all. If we have not heard from you by the  
end of the following month, we will send you an automatic reminder.

What if I can’t write or read very well?
We can provide our information booklet and guide in large print, 
Braille, other languages or on audio tape. If you need someone to help 
you write or read your Letterbox news, get in touch with us to discuss 
how we can support you.

If you need your letters translated into another language, we can 
arrange this. 
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If you are having difficulties preparing your news or for some reason 
you now do not wish to send or receive news, please let us know so we 
can let the adopters/birth relative know. This way they will not expect 
news from you and you may arrange to send something when you  
feel more confident.

Am I legally obliged to keep to the  
agreement made?
Unless there is a specific contact order made by the court all Letterbox 
agreements are voluntary and depend on the goodwill of all those 
concerned to keep them going. We hope that everyone will keep to the 
agreements they have made. If you fail to keep to the arrangement 
without telling everyone that you are experiencing some difficulty may 
cause confusion and unnecessary distress to the other people involved.

What happens if, as a birth relative,  
I do not wish to be involved in a  
Letterbox arrangement?
We know that at the time a child is placed for adoption, some birth 
relatives feel they do not want to take part in a Letterbox arrangement. 
These feelings may not change, but it may be that at some time in 
the future, even years ahead, you may begin to feel differently. For this 
reason, we let birth relatives know that their news will be kept safely with 
the letterbox service for them if they wish to claim it in the future.  
We ask adoptive parents to go on sending news to the Letterbox  
each year for the same reason.

If birth relatives or adoptive parents decide in years to come that  
they would like to begin taking part in Letterbox exchanges, or to  
begin again if they have withdrawn for a while, the post permanency 
worker will be pleased to talk about how to find out if this is possible.

What happens if news is not claimed?
If the news you send in is not claimed, it will be kept on the child’s 
adoption file. The Letterbox service will contact you prior to the child’s 
18th birthday or the end of the Letterbox arrangement, to ask you what 
you would like to happen to the news.

It can either be returned to you, or it can be placed on the adoption  
file, where it can be seen by the adopted person at any time in the 
future. She/he can decide whether to remove any news and keep it,  
or leave it on the file.

If the birth relative, for whom unclaimed news is intended, contacts  
the department in the future asking for the news, if it remains on the  
file it may be passed on to them at that stage.

If the adopted person, as an adult, wishes there to be a different 
arrangement, it is their right to say what should happen to any 
unclaimed news if and when they contact the department.
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What if the Letterbox agreement needs 
to be changed?
For various reasons, the Letterbox arrangements may need to 
be altered as the years go by. Some adopted children may not 
want news about them to be sent as they get older. With the agreement 
of the adoptive parents, some may want to start writing themselves.  
It is important that the child’s wishes are respected at every stage.

The views and circumstances of birth relatives and adoptive parents 
may change with time. You may find it helpful to talk things over with 
a post permanency social worker if you are in touch with one. If not,  
the post permanency unit will be pleased to help. 

If the proposed change seems to be the right thing for everyone 
involved, and everyone agrees, the letterbox arrangements can be 
changed. The post permanency social worker will normally write to 
everyone involved to confirm the change agreed.

What happens when the adopted  
person becomes 18?
At 18, the adopted person can have access to the information held on 
the adoption file once they reach 18, although many adopted people 
do not request this until much later.

Some Letterbox arrangements can end when the adopted person 
reaches 18. In some situations it can be extended. At 18 the adopted 
person has the right to decide for themselves what contact there  
should be with birth relatives. 
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Where do I send my Letterbox letters?
The address for all letters and all Letterbox correspondence is: 
The Letterbox Service 
Adoption Post Permanency Unit 
Hackney Service Centre 
1 Hillman Street 
Hackney 
E8 1DY

Can I telephone the Letterbox direct?
You can telephone the post-permanency social worker on: 
08000 730 418

If you are not happy with the service you have received then  
you can write or call Children’s Social Care complaints

Hackney Service Centre 
1 Hillman Street 
London  
E8 1DY

children.complaints@hackney.gov.uk 
www.hackney.gov.uk/Childrens-Social-Care-Complaints

Some months before the adopted person becomes 18, the post 
permanency social worker will write to the adoptive parents and the 
birth relatives concerned, to remind them that the arrangement is  
due to end and to discuss their options.

The letterbox coordinator will provide information about sources of help 
and support for the future for the adoptive parents, the adopted young 
person and the birth relatives.

Any information which has not been claimed will be dealt with as 
outlined in the earlier section. The adoption file will be kept safely in the 
archives for a minimum of 100 years. If the adopted person asks to see 
the file, any transferred Letterbox information will be available, along 
with other records about the adoption.

The support of a post permanency social worker is always available 
if requested. The adopted person can decide whether to keep the 
Letterbox information (which may include letters to birth relatives  
from the adopters or items from birth relatives held in the Letterbox  
file) or whether to leave it on the file.

This can be a time of disappointment, uncertainty and frustration  
for birth relatives in particular, if previously regular exchanges of  
news cease.

The post permanency social worker can offer support or suggest other 
sources of help. It is important, to respect the wishes of the adopted 
person about future contact.



2120

Useful Contacts

Post Permanency Adoption Unit
Hackney Service Centre 
1 Hilman Street 
London  
E8 1DY.

Tel: 08000 730 418
www.hackney.gov.uk/adoption

Adoption UK 
46 The Green 
South Bar Street 
Banbury 
OX16 9AB.

Helpline: 0844 848 7900
www.adoptionuk.org.uk

Adoption UK is a national voluntary self help group 
supporting families before, during and after adoption.

Post Adoption Centre 
5 Torriano Mews,  
Torriano Avenue 
London  
NW5 2RZ.

Tel: 020 7284 0555
Advice Line: 0870 777 2197
www.postadoptioncentre.org.uk

This centre offers a confidential specialist advice service,counselling  
and family work for anyone who has been involved with adoption.
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General Register Office
Smedley Hydro,  
Trafalgar Road  
Southport 
PR8 2HH.

Tel: 0151 471 4830
www.gro.gov.uk

The General Register Office [GRO] forms part of the Office for National 
Statistics [ONS] an independent government agency which produces 
regular analysis of social, economic and business information. 

NAPAC [The National Association for People Abused in Childhood]
42 Curtain Road 
London  
EC2A 3NH.

Tel: 0800 085 3330
www.napac.org.uk

NAPAC offers advice and support to people affected by  
childhood abuse.

Wills and Divorce Records 
First Avenue House 
42-49 High Holbon 
London  
WC1V 6NP.

Tel: 020 7947 6000
www.hmcourts-service.gov.uk

Holds the records relating to probate and divorce matters.

NORCAP [National Orgnisation for Counselling Adoptees and Parents]
112 Church Road 
Wheatley 
Oxfordshire  
OX33 1LU.

Tel: 01865 875000
Email: enquiries@norcap.org
www.norcap.org.uk

NORCAP is a national organisation who provide support and advice to 
those who are adopted, birth relatives of adopted people and adoptive 
families. It holds an Adoption Contact register, and provides specialist 
advice and support groups.

It also has a search room containing records of births, deaths 
and marriages for 1904-2000, telephone directories and other 
sources of information.

The Salvation Army Family Tracing Service
1 Tirverton Street  
London  
SE1 6NT.

Tel: 0207 378 1021
www.salvationarmy.org.uk

The Care Quality Commission
Citygate,  
Gallowgate 
Newcastle Upon Tyne  
NE1 4PA

Tel: 03000 616161
www.cqc.org.uk
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✃

Hackney Adoption Unit, Children and Young People’s Services,  
Hackney Service Centre, 1 Hillman Street, Hackney E8 1DY.

London Metropolitan Archives
40 Northampton Road 
London  
EC1R OHB.

Tel: 020 7332 3820
www.cityoflondon.gov.uk/ima

Tha National Archives 
Kew 
Richmond 
Surrey 
TW9 4DU.

Tel: 0208 876 3444
www.nationalarchives.gov.uk



Produced by Hackney Design, Communications & Print • October 2011 • PJ44376

What happens next? 
If you would like to find out more about adoption  
or you have queries about your eligibility and  
the sort of children who currently need families, 
contact us now and we will be happy to give  
you more information. 

Freephone 08000 730 418 
postpermanency@hackney.gov.uk 
www.hackney.gov.uk/adoption


